
 
Mesa Union School District 

 Agenda for the Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees to be held on Thursday, November 15, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. in the 
School Multi-Purpose Room located at 3901 North Mesa School Road, Somis, California 93066  

The Regular Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees will begin at 6:00 p.m. with closed session and approximately 6:30 p.m. for 
open session. A complete agenda packet is available at the District Office, 3901 North Mesa School Road, Somis, 72 hours prior to 
a regularly scheduled meeting and online at www.mesaschooldistrict.org. 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND RECOGNITION OF A QUORUM   

Time______ Present Absent 
Mr.   Bryan Stotko, President ______ ______ 
Mrs. Mary Crull, Vice President ______ ______ 
Mr.   Steven Sullivan, Clerk  ______ ______ 
Mrs. Tonya Brunett, Trustee ______ ______ 
Mr.   Jeff Turner, Superintendent ______ ______ 
Mrs. Tami Peterson, Chief Business Official ______ ______ 
Mrs. Erica Magdaleno, Executive Assistant ______ ______ 
  

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
Usually an agenda covers an entire session, in which case it is the order of business for that session and is adopted by  

     majority vote of the assembly. Thereafter, no change can be made in the agenda except by a two-thirds vote or by  
     unanimous consent. At the point of adoption of the agenda, any Board member or the Superintendent can request that the  
     agenda be reordered. 

  
3.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 

At this time, any member of the public may address the Board concerning the closed session items. A person addressing the  
     Board is urged to use not more than three (3) minutes of time. If you wish to address the Board, please plan to complete a  
     Speaker Form prior to the start of the meeting. Forms are available in the District Office, at the Board meeting and online at  
     www.mesaschooldistrict.org. 
 
4.  CLOSED SESSION  

During this time, the Board may adjourn to closed session to discuss confidential material relating to: 
A.  Negotiations as it relates to MUTA and MUST- Consult with District Negotiator Jeff Turner, Superintendent, 

           authorized by Government Code §3549.1 
B. Public Employee: Superintendent’s Goals/Evaluation authorized by Government Code  §54957 

 
ADJOURN FROM CLOSED SESSION 
Time: ______ 

  
RECONVENE IN PUBLIC 
(Approximate time 6:30 p.m.)   Time: ______ 

  
Report of actions taken during closed session: The president of the Board will report on actions taken during closed session. 

  
5.  OFFICIAL OPENING - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
6.  MINUTES 

It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Board of Trustees approve the minutes of the Regular Board  
     Meeting of October 16, 2018. 

 
7.  AUDIENCE TO ADDRESS BOARD OF TRUSTEES - COMMENTS BY THE PUBLIC 

http://www.mesaschool.org/
http://www.mesaschooldistrict.org/
http://www.mesaschool.org/
http://www.mesaschool.org/
http://www.mesaschool.org/


 
Mesa Union School District 

 Agenda for the Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees to be held on Thursday, November 15, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. in the 
School Multi-Purpose Room located at 3901 North Mesa School Road, Somis, California 93066  

All individuals are invited to speak to the Board during public comment on matters related to the District. If you wish to 
address the Board, please plan to complete a Speaker Form prior to the start of the meeting. Forms are available in the District 
Office, at the Board meeting and online at www.mesaschooldistrict.org. 

 
9. PUBLIC HEARING 

A. Presentation of Initial Proposal of the Mesa Union Support Team (MUST) to Mesa Union School District for the 
2018-2019 school year for negotiations; and Public Comment 
 
In accordance with Government Code section 3547, all initial bargaining proposals of a public school employer shall be 
presented at a public meeting of the public school employer.  The initial bargaining proposal of the Mesa Union Support 
Team (MUST) to Mesa Union School District was first made public at the October 16, 2018 meeting of the Board of 
Trustees and is hereby returned to this agenda for public discussion. 

 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA 9A IN THE PACKET 

 
10.  STUDY SESSION-DISCUSSION/INFORMATION 

A. Board Governance Training--Study Session: The Mesa Union School District Board of Trustees will participate in a study 
session facilitated by Dr. Joe Condon, Ed.D.  
1. Foundations of Effective Governance 

● New Board Trustee Orientation 
 
11.  BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Correspondence 
1. Call for Nominations to CSBA’s Delegate Assembly 

B. Board members' reports and communications 
C. Board members' interests and concerns 

 
12. CONSENT AGENDA 

Approval of the Consent Agenda – All items on the Consent Agenda are to be approved as one motion unless a Board member 
requests separate action on a specific item. Each item approved shall be deemed to have been read in full and adopted as 
recommended. 

 
A. Purchase Orders – Mesa (October 1-October 31, 2018)                   `  

 
It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Purchase Orders be approved as presented. 

  
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 12A IN THE PACKET 

  
B.  Check Register – Mesa (October 1-October 31, 2018) 

  
It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Check Register be approved as presented. 

  
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 12B IN THE PACKET 

  
C.  Statement of Revenues and Expenditures (October 1-October 31, 2018) 

  

http://www.mesaschool.org/
http://www.mesaschool.org/


 
Mesa Union School District 

 Agenda for the Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees to be held on Thursday, November 15, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. in the 
School Multi-Purpose Room located at 3901 North Mesa School Road, Somis, California 93066  

It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures be approved as 
presented. 

  
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 12C IN THE PACKET 

  
D.  Current Enrollment Report 

  
It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Enrollment Report be approved as presented. 

 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 12D IN THE PACKET 
 

E. Student of the Month Listing and Junior High 1st Quarter/Honor Roll & Merit Roll Listing 
 

It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Student of the Month listing be accepted as presented. 
 

PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 12E IN THE PACKET 
 
13.   INFORMATION ITEMS 

 
 A. Receive the Initial Proposal of the Mesa Union School District to the Mesa Union Teachers’Association (MUTA) 
      for the 2018-2019 school year negotiations 

 
In accordance with Government Code section 3547, all initial bargaining proposals of an exclusive bargaining 
representative shall be presented at a public meeting of a public school employer and thereafter, shall be public record. 
Mesa Union School District hereby presents its initial proposal to the Mesa Union Teachers’ Association (MUTA).  This 
proposal shall be available for public review in the District Office from November 15, 2018 to December 13, 2018 and the 
public will have an opportunity to respond to this proposal at the next scheduled Board meeting. 
 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 13A IN THE PACKET 
 

 B. Receive the Initial Proposal of the Mesa Union School District to the Mesa Union Support Team (MUST) for the  
2018-2019 school year negotiations 
 
In accordance with Government Code section 3547, all initial bargaining proposals of an exclusive bargaining 
representative shall be presented at a public meeting of a public school employer and thereafter, shall be public record. 
Mesa Union School District hereby presents its initial proposal to the Mesa Union Support Team (MUST).  This proposal 
shall be available for public review in the District Office from November 15, 2018 to December 13, 2018 and the public 
will have an opportunity to respond to this proposal at the next scheduled Board meeting. 
 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 13B IN THE PACKET 
 

14. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS:  
A. Discuss and adopt the Initial Proposal of the Mesa Union Support Team (MUST) to Mesa Union School District for 

the 2018-2019 school year negotiations  
 



 
Mesa Union School District 

 Agenda for the Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees to be held on Thursday, November 15, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. in the 
School Multi-Purpose Room located at 3901 North Mesa School Road, Somis, California 93066  

In accordance with Government Code section 3547, discuss and adopt the initial proposal of the Mesa Union Support 
Team (MUST) to Mesa Union School District for the 2018-2019 school year negotiations. 

 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 14B IN THE PACKET 
 

B. Consideration of adoption of Resolution #18-19-07 Regarding Annual & Five Year Accounting of Development Fees for 
Fiscal Year 2017-2018 as per GC66001(D) 

 
It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Board of Trustees adopt Resolution #18-19-07 regarding 
Annual & Five Year Accounting of Development Fees for fiscal year 2017-2018 as per GC66001 (D). 
 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 14C IN THE PACKET 

 
C. Consideration of approval of the conference request of Christina Jahr and Adell Reyes to attend the NSTA Regional  

Conference in Charlotte, NC from November 28th-December 1st, 2018 
 
It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Board of Trustees approve the conference request of 
Christian Jahr and Adell Reyes to attend the NSTA Regional Conference in Charlotte, NC, from November 
28th-December 1st, 2018.  
 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 14C IN THE PACKET 

 
D. Consideration of approval of the conference request of Christina Mendoza, Alice Villa and Jolana Ramirez to attend CTA  

Issues Conference in  Las Vegas, NV from January 18th-January 20th 
 
It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Board of Trustees approve the conference request of 
Christina Mendoza, Alice Villa, and Jolana Ramirez to attend CTA Issues Conference in  Las Vegas, NV,  from 
November 28th-December 1st, 2018.  
 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 14D IN THE PACKET 
 

E.   Consideration of approval of the Full STEAM Ahead After-school Program field trip request to Cal Poly San Luis  
Obispo on December 1, 2018 

 
It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Board of Trustees approve the Full STEAM Ahead 
after-school program field trip request to Cal Poly San Luis Obispo on December 1, 2018. 
 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 14E IN THE PACKET 

 
F.   Consideration of approval of the eighth grade field trip request to the Museum of Tolerance on March 14, 2019 

 
It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Board of Trustees approve the eighth grade field trip 
request to Museum of Tolerance on March 14, 2019. 
 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 14F IN THE PACKET  

 



 
Mesa Union School District 

 Agenda for the Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees to be held on Thursday, November 15, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. in the 
School Multi-Purpose Room located at 3901 North Mesa School Road, Somis, California 93066  

G.  Consideration of approval of the eighth grade field trip request to Six Flags Magic Mountain on June 7, 2019 
 

It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Board of Trustees approve the eighth grade field trip 
request to Six Flags Magic Mountain on June 7, 2019.  
 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 14G THE PACKET 
 

H. Consideration of acceptance of the receipt of the Golden Valley Charter School Annual Programmatic Audit 2017-2018 
 
It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Board of Trustees accept the receipt of the Golden Valley 
Charter School Annual Programmatic Audit 2017-2018.  
 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 14H IN THE PACKET 
 

I. Consideration of approval of the obsoleting and disposal of Bus #2 (1996 Thomas Bird VIN# 1T7HT4B21T1142004) 
 

It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Board of Trustees approve the obsoleting and disposal of 
Bus #2 (1996 Thomas Bird, VIN#1T7HT4B21T1142004) 
 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 14I IN THE PACKET 

 
J. First Read of the October 2018 Board Policy Revisions for sections: 

BP 0420.42-Charter School Renewal 
BP 1100- Communication with the Public 
BP 3290-Gifts, Grants and Bequests 
AR 3320-Claims and Actions Against the District  
AR 3460-Financial Reports and Accountability 
BP 5141.6-School Health Services 
AR 5141.6-School Health Services 
BP 5144.1-Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
AR 5144.1-Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 

 
BP 6142.3-Civic Education 
BP 6145.2-Athletic Competition  
AR 6145.2-Athletic Competition  
BP 6170.1-Transitional Kindergarten 
BP 6178-Career Technical Education  
BP 6190-Evaluation of the Instructional Program 
BB 9110-Terms of Office 

 
It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Board of Trustees review the policies in sections 
0000-9000 of the October 2018 CSBA board policy updates. These policies will be placed on the December 
agenda for adoption. 
 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 14J IN THE PACKET 

 
K. Consideration of the ratification of the independent contractor agreement with Shallon Cerf to provide Speech and 

Language Services, service days not to exceed 60 days for the 2018-2019 school year.  
 

It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Board of Trustees ratify the independent contractor 
agreement with Shallon Cerf to provide Speech and Language services, service days not to exceed 60 days for the 
2018-2019 school year.  
 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 14K IN THE PACKET 



 
Mesa Union School District 

 Agenda for the Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees to be held on Thursday, November 15, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. in the 
School Multi-Purpose Room located at 3901 North Mesa School Road, Somis, California 93066  

L. Consideration of approval of the quote with Renaissance for a 3 year software program subscription to Renaissance 
Accelerated Math, Renaissance MathFacts in a Flash, Renaissance Star 360 and Renaissance-U  
 
It is the recommendation of the District Administration that the Board of Trustees approve the quote with 
Renaissance for a 3 year software program subscription to Renaissance Accelerated Math, Renaissance MathFacts in a 
Flash, Renaissance Star 360 and Renaissance-U.  
 
PLEASE SEE AGENDA ITEM 14L IN THE PACKET 
 

15.  PERSONNEL: NONE 
 
16.  ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION: 

A. First Interim Report 
B. Annual Reorganization 

  
17.  FUTURE MEETINGS 

A. Regular Board Meeting on Thursday, December 13, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
18.  ADJOURNMENT 

Time: ______ 
 

In accordance with requirement of the Americans with Disabilities Act and related federal regulations, individuals who require 
special accommodation, including but not limited to an American sign language interpreter, accessible seating or documentation 
in accessible formats, should contact the Superintendent's office at least two days before the meeting.  

 



 
Official Minutes of the October 16, 2018 Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the  

Mesa Union School District 

Call to Order 
  
 
Agenda  
 
 
 
 
Roll Call 
  
 
Public Comment 
 
Closed Session 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene to 
Open Session 
  
  
 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
Comment by the Public 
 
Public Hearing 
 
 
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Report 
 
 
 

The October 16, 2018 Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Mesa Union School 
District came to order at 6:00 p.m. in the multi-purpose room. 
 
The Board agenda was by adopted by common consent.  
 
Board members present were Tanya Brunett, Mary Crull, Bryan Stotko. Steven Sullivan was 
absent.  
 
District administrators present were Mr. Turner, superintendent, Erica Magdaleno, executive 
assistant, and Tami Peterson, chief business official.  

There were no public comments on closed session items. 
  
At 6:01p.m., Trustee Stotko asked for public comment on closed session items. Hearing none, 
he announced that the Board would go into closed session to discuss Negotiations as it relates to 
MUTA and MUST-Consult with District Negotiator Jeff Turner, authorized by Government 
Code §3549.1 and Public Employee Superintendent’s Goals/Evaluation authorized by 
Government Code §54957. 
 
Trustee Sullivan arrived at 6:05 p.m. 
 
At 6:34 p.m., the Board of Trustees returned to open session. Trustee Stotko reported that the 
Board of Trustees had just returned from closed session where they discussed Negotiations as it 
relates to MUTA and MUST-Consult with District Negotiator Jeff Turner, authorized by 
Government Code §3549.1 and Public Employee Superintendent’s Goals/Evaluation authorized 
by Government Code §54957. No action was taken.  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Trustee Stotko. 
 
On motion of Trustee Sullivan, seconded by Trustee Brunett, and carried with a 4-0-0 vote, the 
minutes of the September 18, 2018 Board meeting were approved by common consent.  
Vote: 
Brunett: Aye      Crull: Aye      Stotko: Aye      Sullivan: Aye 
Ayes:4 Noes: 0 Abstentions: 0                Absent: 0 
 
Trustee Stotko asked for public comments by the public. There were no public comments. 
 
Trustee Stotko opened the public hearing at 6:36 p.m. for purposes of taking public comments 
on the initial proposal of Mesa Union Teachers’ Association (MUTA) to the Mesa Union 
School District. There were no public comments. 
  
Hearing no public comments, Trustee Stotko closed the public hearing at 6:37 p.m. 
 
2018-2019 Professional Development Plan: Mr.Turner provided an update of the 2018-2019 
professional development plan initiatives that he is hoping to have accomplished this year. Mr. 
Turner shared that one of the most important goals is the adoption of the Multi-Tiered System 
of Supports (MTSS) framework encompassing both Response to Intervention (RtI) and Positive 



 
Official Minutes of the October 16, 2018 Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the  

Mesa Union School District 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Behavioral Interventions and Support (PBIS) systematically addressing the needs of all 
students. Mr.Turner also communicated that the district received a $25,000 grant last year to 
support MTSS. In addition to RtI and PBIS, the MTSS model also includes applying Universal 
Design for Learning (UDL), which focuses on instructional strategies to provide opportunities 
for learning through differentiated content, processes, and products. Mr. Turner spoke of the 
implementation of a universal behavior support system to teach behavioral expectations, 
recognize positive behavior, and clarify consequences. The administration of universal 
formative assessments in grades TK-8 is an essential component to monitor academic growth, 
target supports and interventions to improve achievement for all students, including English 
language learners, low income, and gifted subgroups. Mr. Turner also shared that with these 
new initiatives, teachers are learning how to analyze academic and behavioral data sets using 
the Plan, Do, Study, Act (PDSA) model to inform decision-making at the classroom, site, and 
district level. Teachers will also be adopting the California History Social-Science Framework 
and Next Generation Science Standards to guide instruction. Administration and staff are also 
working on ensuring that all students develop 21st century practices using the 5 c's of 
communication, collaboration, critical thinking, creativity, and compassion. Part of this year’s 
professional development will include improving technology literacy among all teachers and 
students in the district. Teachers will be learning to implement these models during Learning 
Wednesdays and four professional development days throughout the school year.  
 
Social Studies Textbook Adoption Update: Mr. Turner provided an update of the Social 
Studies textbook adoption process. On August 14th, piloting teachers were introduced to the 
Social Science tool kit. On September 5th, teachers evaluated the Social Science textbook 
materials, and on October 21st they will launch session one of the Social Science textbook pilot. 
Teachers will then debrief on session one Social Science textbook materials, and launch session 
two of the pilot on January 23rd. Piloting teachers will then debrief on session two textbook 
materials on May 22nd, and make their recommendation to the Superintendent in advance of the 
May Board meeting for textbook viewing and adoption.  
 
Middle School Elective/Program Update: Mr. Turner provided an update of the junior high 
electives being offered. Students in junior high have an option to choose from three electives. 
Students in sixth grade can choose from Agriculture, Coding or Band, seventh grade students 
can choose from Band, Oceanography, or Creative Writing, and eighth grade students can 
choose from Drama, Robotics, or Guitar. Mr. Turner also shared that as part of the 6th grade 
Agriculture elective, Mesa will be hosting a guest pen for students to study and learn about 
different animals. Last school year, Mesa hosted a heifer cow, currently we have a horse named 
Brownie, and Mr. Turner is also working on hosting a pig. In the spring, Mesa will once again 
host another heifer cow. Furthermore, Mr. Turner shared, if Measure O is passed, Mesa will be 
able to add additional classrooms, which will create more elective opportunities, such as foreign 
language. Mr. Turner also communicated that as part of the MTSS model, the last thirty minutes 
of junior high classes are being spent in seventh period, which includes Math and ELA 
intervention and enrichment, and AVID. Mr. Turner shared some of his experiences as an 
AVID co-teacher, and communicated the benefits of its offerings for students in middle school. 
One of its primary goals is college readiness. In addition, Mr. Turner communicated that AVID 
has the potential to become a full time elective, as many local high schools offer AVID.  
 



 
Official Minutes of the October 16, 2018 Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the  

Mesa Union School District 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Reports and 
Communications 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Trustee Crull shared that Camarillo High School has implemented a one semester college and 
career class that focuses on a similar curriculum as AVID. Trustee Crull also communicated the 
importance of preparing students for college as early as junior high. 
 
Trustee Stotko recommended that Mr. Turner seek out a partnership with some of the Cal State 
and UC schools in order to better prepare Mesa students for college.  
 
Trustee Brunett recommended that Mesa host an eighth grade parent orientation as an effort to 
help prepare students and parents to transition to high school and college. Trustee Brunett also 
shared that some high schools provide informational college meetings that can be attended 
during eighth grade. Trustee Brunett further suggested that Mr. Turner invite former students to 
share their high school and college preparedness experience, as students may find their peers’ 
experience helpful, as they prepare themselves to transition into high school.  
 
Monthly Attendance/Discipline Report: Mr. Turner provided a monthly attendance update. In 
the month of September, the overall attendance average was 97.4%. Mr. Turner communicated 
that as an incentive students with perfect attendance would be recognized during school 
assemblies and have the opportunity to get selected to attend a luncheon with Mr. Turner and 
Ms. Kuklenski. Mr. Turner shared that the next day he and Ms. Kuklenski would be taking 10 
elementary students to eat lunch at Toppers.  Mr. Turner also shared, as recommended by 
Trustee Brunett, that students in junior high with perfect attendance will receive a backpack the 
1st quarter and accessories thereafter. Furthermore, Mr. Turner mentioned that the weekly 
attendance rates are being communicated out to parents via Mesa Matters. As requested by 
Trustee Sullivan, Mr. Turner provided historical attendance data from the 2015-2018 school 
year. Lastly, Mr. Turner provided a discipline report update. In the month of September, there 
were three in school suspensions. Mr. Turner communicated that he, Ms.Kuklenski and all 
school staff will continue to work on school climate.  
 
Board members’ correspondence: Trustee Stotko acknowledged receipt of the Ventura 
County Office of Education correspondence regarding the LCAP and Mesa’s adopted budget 
for fiscal year 2018-2019. 
  
Board members’ reports and communication: Trustee Crull reminded Board members that 
Measure O will be on the November 6th ballot and asked that Board Trustees communicate and 
remind friends and family to vote yes on Measure O. Trustee Crull also reminded the Board that 
the measure has been placed on the second page of the ballot.  
 
Board members’ interests and concerns: None 
 
Consent Agenda: 
Purchase Orders $419,622.58 
Checks Totaling $221,082.76 
Fund Balances 
Enrollment 615 
Student of the Month Listing 
 
The consent agenda was adopted by common consent 



 
Official Minutes of the October 16, 2018 Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the  

Mesa Union School District 

Information 
 
 
Action Discussion Items 
Board of Trustee Applicant 
Interviews 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Initial Proposal of MUTA 
to Mesa Union School 
District 
 
 
 
 
Resolution #18-19-03 
Recognition of National 
Red Ribbon Week  
 
 
 
 
Resolution #18-19-04 
District of Choice Program 
Renewal  
 
 
 
District of Choice 
Procedures and 
Application for the 
2019-2020 school  
 
 
Lunch Price Increase 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Trustee Stotko acknowledged receipt of the initial proposal of the Mesa Union Support Team 
(MUST) to the Mesa Union School District for the 2018-2019 school year. 
 
Mr. Turner introduced Mrs. Jayme Dryden, Mrs. Roddie Villa and Mrs. Karen Pfeiffer, as 
interested applicants for the vacant Board of Trustee position.  Candidates were asked to 
respond to a series of interview questions. Based on candidate experience and individual 
responses to the interview questions, on motion of Trustee Sullivan, seconded by Trustee 
Brunett, and carried with a  3-1-0 vote the Board of Trustees appointed Mrs. Roddie Villa to the 
Board of Trustees. Mrs. Villa will take her Oath of Office at the December Board meeting.  
Vote: 
Brunett: Aye      Crull: Nay            Stotko: Aye      Sullivan: Aye 
Ayes: 3 Noes: 1 Abstentions: 0                Absent: 0 
 
On motion of Trustee Brunett, seconded by Trustee Crull, and carried with a 4-0-0 vote, the 
initial proposal of the Mesa Union Teachers’ Association (MUTA) to Mesa Union School 
District for the 2018-2019 school year negotiations was adopted.  
Vote: 
Brunett: Aye      Crull: Aye            Stotko: Aye      Sullivan: Aye 
Ayes: 4 Noes: 0 Abstentions: 0                Absent: 0 
 
On motion of Trustee Brunett, seconded by Trustee Sullivan, and carried with a 4-0-0 vote, 
Resolution #18-19-03 in Recognition of National Red Ribbon Week October 23-October 31, 
2018 was adopted.  
Vote: 
Brunett: Aye      Crull: Aye            Stotko: Aye      Sullivan: Aye 
Ayes: 4 Noes: 0 Abstentions: 0                Absent: 0 
 
On motion of Trustee Crull, seconded by Trustee Brunett, and carried with a 4-0-0 vote, 
Resolution #18-19-04 District of Choice Program Renewal was adopted. 
Vote: 
Brunett: Aye      Crull: Aye            Stotko: Aye      Sullivan: Aye 
Ayes: 4 Noes: 0 Abstentions: 0                Absent: 0 
 
On motion of Trustee Brunett, seconded by Trustee Sullivan, and carried with a 4-0-0 vote, the 
District of Choice Procedures and Application for the 2019-2020 school year were approved. 
Vote: 
Brunett: Aye      Crull: Aye            Stotko: Aye      Sullivan: Aye 
Ayes: 4 Noes: 0 Abstentions: 0                Absent: 0 
 
On motion of Trustee Brunett, seconded by Trustee Sullivan, and carried with a 4-0-0 vote, the 
lunch price increase from $2.75 to $2.85, effective January 1, 2019, was approved.  
Vote: 
Brunett: Aye      Crull: Aye            Stotko: Aye      Sullivan: Aye 
Ayes: 4 Noes: 0 Abstentions: 0                Absent: 0 
 



 
Official Minutes of the October 16, 2018 Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the  

Mesa Union School District 

Quarterly Report on 
Williams Uniform 
 
 
 
 
 
MOU with VCOE for 
Educator Support and 
Effectiveness Programs 
 
 
 
 
Independent Contract 
Agreement with Lynne 
Slidders to provide an 
Afterschool Art Program 
 
 
 
Independent Contractor 
Agreement with Shallon 
Cerf to provide temporary 
Speech and Language  
 
 
 
Personnel 
 
Future Items 
 
 
 
Future Meeting 
  
Adjournment 

On motion of Trustee Brunett, seconded by Trustee Crull, and carried with a 4-0-0 vote, the 
Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints for the quarter ending September 2018 was 
accepted.  
Vote: 
Brunett: Aye      Crull: Aye            Stotko: Aye      Sullivan: Aye 
Ayes: 4 Noes: 0 Abstentions: 0                Absent: 0 
 
On motion of Trustee Sullivan, seconded by Trustee Brunett, and carried with a 4-0-0 vote, the 
Memorandum of Understanding with Ventura County Office of Education for Educator Support 
Effectiveness Programs was approved.  
Vote: 
Brunett: Aye      Crull: Aye            Stotko: Aye      Sullivan: Aye 
Ayes: 4 Noes: 0 Abstentions: 0                Absent: 0 
 
On motion of Trustee Sullivan, seconded by Brunett, and carried with a 4-0-0 vote, the 
independent contract agreement with Mrs. Lynne Slidders to provide an after-school art 
program for the Full STEAM Ahead After-school Program was approved. 
Vote: 
Brunett: Aye      Crull: Aye            Stotko: Aye      Sullivan: Aye 
Ayes: 4 Noes: 0 Abstentions: 0                Absent: 0 
 
On motion of Trustee Brunett, seconded by Crull, and carried with a 4-0-0 vote, the ratification 
of the temporary independent contractor agreement with Mrs. Shallon Cerf to provide speech 
and language services was approved.  
Vote: 
Brunett: Aye      Crull: Aye            Stotko: Aye      Sullivan: Aye 
Ayes: 4 Noes: 0 Abstentions: 0                Absent: 0 
 
None 
 
School Safety Plan 
CAASPP State Test Results 
Developer Fees 
 
November 15, 2018, at 6:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting 
 
There being no further items of business, the Board adjourned at 8:16 p.m.  

  

 













































































































































 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

GOLDEN VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOL 
 

ANNUAL PROGRAMMATIC AUDIT 2017-18 
 

 
Prepared for Mesa Union School District 

October 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 1 

Table of Contents 
 

 
A. Summary of data showing student progress toward the goals and outcomes specified 
 in the Charter using the assessment instruments and techniques listed in the Charter…….………….………….2 
 
B. Information reflecting the Charter School has complied with any applicable high school exit 
 examination………………………………………………………………….……………………………………4 
 
C. Analysis of whether student performance is meeting the goals specified in the Charter…………...…….……5   
 
D. Data on the level of parent involvement in the Charter School’s governance 
 (and other aspects of the Charter School, if applicable) and a summary of data from  
an annual parent and student satisfaction survey, together with a summary of actions  
taken or planned to correct deficiencies or improve results in the foregoing……….…………….………………8 
 
E. Data regarding the number of staff working at the Charter School and their qualifications………………….12 
 
F. A copy of the Charter School’s health and safety policies and/or a summary of any major 
 change to those policies during the year, as well as a summary of all health and safety issues 
 arising since the last report, and a summary of actions taken or planned to correct deficiencies 
 or improve results in the foregoing……………………………………………………………………………...15 
 
G. Analysis and comparison of the racial and ethnic makeup of charter pupils as compared 
 to the general population of residents within the territorial boundaries of the District, 
 including outreach actions taken to strive to achieve the charter pupil population is  
 reflective of the general population of the District……………………………………………………………...16 
 
H. Analysis of the Charter School’s admissions practices, data regarding the numbers of 
 students enrolled, dis-enrolled, denied admission and the reasons therefore, the number  
 on waiting lists, and information on any plans for expansion to accommodate more pupils, 
 including those on the waiting lists…………….……………………………………………………………......16 
 
I. Analysis of the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal and external dispute mechanisms, 
 and data on the number and resolution of disputes and complaints……………………………….…………....17 
  
J. Other information regarding the educational program and the administrative, legal,  
and governance operations of the Charter School relative to compliance with the terms  
of the charter, generally……….………………………………………………………………………………....17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 2 

A.   SUMMARY DATA OF STUDENT PROGRESS 
2017-2018 

	
Golden	Valley	Charter	School 

Assessment	Summary	
 
 
The California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) Smarter Balanced 
online assessments were administered to more than 3.2 million students in 2018 to gauge their 
progress in learning the more rigorous academic standards designed to prepare them for college 
and careers in the 21st century. The test is in its fourth operational year. The Smarter Balanced 
summative assessments tested students in grades 3-8 and 11 in English language arts and 
mathematics. There are two parts to each Smarter Balanced test. First, there is an adaptive test 
that gives students different follow-up questions based on their answers. Second, there is a 
performance task that challenges students to apply their knowledge and skills to real-world 
problems. The two-parts measure depth of understanding, writing, research, and problem-solving 
skills. Students will fall into one of four achievement levels: standard exceeded, standard met, 
standard nearly met, and standard not met. 
 
English Language Arts 
Overall scores of GVCS students meeting and exceeded standards increased by 1% from the 
previous year to 53%, surpassing Ventura County (by 6%) and State of California (by 3%). 
Golden Valley has exceeded state and county scores, in this area, for the fourth year in a row. 
 
Mathematics 
Overall scores of GVCS students meeting or exceeded standards increased by 3% from the 
previous year to 38%. GVCS scored slightly higher than Ventura County (by 2%). GVCS scored 
lower than the State of California (by 1%).  
 
Science 
In 2016-17, the California Science Test (CAST) took the place of the California Standards Test 
(CST) in science. In 2017-18, students in grades 5, 8, 11, and 12 took the field test of the 
California Science Test (CAST). Scores for the CAST will not be available until the year 2019. 
 

Science	Test	Development	Cycle	

Year	 CAST	 CAA	for	Science	

2016–17	 Pilot	test	 Pilot	test	

2017–18	 Field	test	 Pilot	test	

2018–19	 Operational	test	 Field	test	

2019–20	 Operational	test	 Operational	test	

 



 3 

 
Spring 2018 CAASPP Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment Results: 

GVCS vs. State and County 
 

Standard Exceeded 

 
 

Standard Met 

 
 

 
 
 

 

3rd	
Grade

4th	
Grade

5th	
Grade

6th	
Grade

7th	
Grade

8th	
Grade

11th	
Grade All

GVCS 30% 31% 17% 12% 6% 21% 19% 19%

State 26% 26% 22% 17% 16% 16% 26% 21%

County 23% 24% 20% 15% 15% 14% 24% 19%

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%

Pe
rc
en

ta
ge
	o
f	S
tu
de

nt
s	S

co
rin

g	
St
an
da
rd
	

Ex
ce
ed

ed

English-Language	Arts

GVCS State County

3rd	
Grade

4th	
Grade

5th	
Grade

6th	
Grade

7th	
Grade

8th	
Grade

11th	
Grade All

GVCS 52% 47% 20% 32% 44% 43% 19% 38%

State 49% 43% 36% 37% 37% 37% 31% 39%

County 46% 41% 32% 34% 35% 36% 32% 36%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%

Pe
rc
en

ta
ge
	o
f	S
tu
de

nt
s	S

co
rin

g	
St
an
da
rd
	

M
et
	a
nd

	E
xc
ee
de

d

Mathematics

GVCS State County



 4 

OTHER ASSESSMENTS 
  
Portfolios/work samples: Education Facilitators collect monthly work samples for each 
subject/growth area. A portfolio is compiled, and is included in our yearly audit.  Portfolios are 
kept on file for a period of three years.  These portfolios provide evidence of student 
achievement and accomplishment.  Items that may be included in the portfolio are not limited to 
paper and pencil work; rather, a family may choose to include recordings, art projects, or pictures 
of activities which the student participated in. 
 
Learning Plans: Education Facilitators document all students' learning in a monthly learning 
plan. It is through these learning plans that we track and document the measurable pupil 
outcomes, as defined in our charter. 
 
Report cards/transcripts: Golden Valley assigns grades on a semester basis.  All students 
receive report cards. All students in grades 9-12 receive semester grades and high school credits 
on a high school transcript.  The grades are determined by the parent and Education Facilitator 
(and the student, where appropriate) as a team, but the Education Facilitator has the final say in 
the grade and number of credits earned.  
 
Schoolwide fall and spring assessments: All students in grades 3-11 complete pre-tests 
covering the California State Standards in English Language Arts, Reading, and Math in order to 
plan instruction for the school year, and take post-tests in the spring in order to focus instruction 
on areas not yet mastered. Last year we used i-Ready as our testing platform, which is an 
adaptive, computer-based program that is easily accessible to all students. Based on the results of 
this assessment, the program provides instruction modules that students can utilize to strengthen 
areas of need. 
 

B. HIGH SCHOOL EXIT EXAM DATA 
 

The California High School Exit Examination (CAHSEE), formerly a graduation requirement for 
students in California public schools, was suspended effective January 1, 2016. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 5 

 
C.  ANALYSIS OF STUDENT PERFORMANCE 

 
Our charter states that the extent to which students achieve the measurable pupil outcomes is 
determined by mastery of the student standards and by demonstrated proficiency on the state’s 
designated testing and reporting instruments.  

Based on this data, GVCS students perform comparably well with students in a regular public 
school setting. It’s important to keep in mind that the small student population of GVCS 
compared to the county and state populations can give a somewhat skewed view of results on the 
graph. For a school as small as ours, a small handful of students can dramatically change the 
percentages.  

Overall Impressions 
GVCS is pleased with the fourth year of ELA test scores assessing the more rigorous academic 
Common Core State Standards. Along with a 3% math increase, seventy-eight percent of Math 
Path students increased their scores in math. GVCS also scored higher than most similar schools 
analyzed in this report in ELA and math.  
 
Our goal is to improve test scores on the CAASPP by ensuring that all students show growth and 
proficiency, are well educated, have access to quality materials, and are challenged to their 
highest ability. Analyzing and interpreting CAASPP data is one way to help GVCS determine 
curriculum, instruction, strengths, and areas for growth. 
 

Spring 2018 CAASPP Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment Results 
English Language Arts and Mathematics 
GVCS 2018 vs. 2017 vs. 2016 
Students Exceeding/Meeting Standards 

 

3rd	
Grade

4th	
Grade

5th	
Grade

6th	
Grade

7th	
Grade

8th	
Grade

11th	
Grade All

2018 53% 58% 47% 47% 52% 64% 44% 53%

2017 48% 39% 36% 49% 65% 64% 70% 52%

2016 40% 42% 48% 58% 62% 63% 65% 51%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%

Pe
rc
en

ta
ge
	o
f	S
tu
de

nt
s	S

co
rin

g	
St
an
da
rd
	

M
et
	a
nd

	E
xc
ee
de

d

English	Language	Arts

2018 2017 2016



 6 

 

Spring 2018 CAASPP Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment Results 
English Language Arts and Mathematics 
GVCS 2018 vs. 2017 vs. 2016 

Students Nearly Meeting/Not Meeting Standards 

 

3rd	
Grade

4th	
Grade

5th	
Grade

6th	
Grade

7th	
Grade

8th	
Grade

11th	
Grade All

2018 52% 47% 20% 32% 44% 43% 19% 38%

2017 37% 26% 28% 26% 52% 45% 24% 35%

2016 33% 36% 31% 42% 53% 37% 42% 38%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%

Pe
rc
en

ta
ge
	o
f	S
tu
de

nt
s	S

co
rin

g	
St
an
da
rd
	

M
et
	a
nd

	E
xc
ee
de

d

Mathematics

2018 2017 2016

3rd	
Grade

4th	
Grade

5th	
Grade

6th	
Grade

7th	
Grade

8th	
Grade

11th	
Grade All

2018 47% 42% 53% 53% 48% 36% 56% 47%

2017 52% 61% 64% 51% 35% 36% 30% 48%

2016 60% 59% 52% 42% 39% 37% 36% 49%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%

Pe
rc
en

ta
ge
	o
f	S
tu
de

nt
s	S

co
rin

g	
St
an
da
rd
	

Ne
ar
ly
	M

et
	a
nd

	N
ot
	M

et

English	Language	Arts

2018 2017 2016



 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

3rd	
Grade

4th	
Grade

5th	
Grade

6th	
Grade

7th	
Grade

8th	
Grade

11th	
Grade All

2018 48% 53% 80% 68% 56% 57% 81% 62%

2017 63% 74% 72% 74% 48% 55% 76% 65%

2016 67% 64% 70% 58% 48% 64% 59% 62%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

Pe
rc
en

ta
ge
	o
f	S
tu
de

nt
s	S

co
rin

g	
St
an
da
rd
	

Ne
ar
ly
	M

et
	a
nd

	N
ot
	M

et

Mathematics

2018 2017 2016



 8 

D. PARENT INVOLVEMENT 
Parent Survey Schoolwide Results 2017-18 

By nature of the design of our program, parents are highly involved in the education of their 
children on a daily basis, as the parent is responsible for the day to day teaching. Two seats on 
our Board of Directors are designated for parents. We received 192 total responses to our last 
year’s survey. 
 

Are	You	Satisfied	With…	 Yes	 No	 N/A		

The	Curriculum	Provided	for	my	Children	 176	 91.67%	 6	 3.13%	 10	 5.21%	

Timeliness	of	Curriculum	Delivery	 176	 91.67%	 6	 3.13%	 10	 5.21%	

Schoolwide	Online	Subscriptions	 121	 63.02%	 0	 0.00%	 71	 36.98%	

Mandated	State	Test	Administration	 119	 61.98%	 13	 6.77%	 60	 31.25%	

Academic	Standards	for	Students	 180	 93.75%	 1	 0.52%	 11	 5.73%	

Guidance	Counseling	for	High	School	Students	 59	 30.73%	 3	 1.56%	 130	 67.71%	

Newsletter	Information	on	the	School	Website	or	
Provided	by	EF	 178	 92.71%	 2	 1.04%	 12	 6.25%	

Other	Information	Available	on	the	School	Website	 179	 93.23%	 2	 1.04%	 11	 5.73%	

Responsiveness	of	the	School	Support	Staff	 179	 93.23%	 0	 0.00%	 13	 6.77%	

School	Administration	 169	 88.02%	 1	 0.52%	 22	 11.46%	

Contact	with	Special	Education	Department,	if	
Applicable	 49	 25.52%	 2	 1.04%	 140	 72.92%	

Service	Provided	by	Special	Education	Vendors,	if	
Applicable	 44	 22.92%	 2	 1.04%	 146	 76.04%	

Success	in	achieving	the	mission	of	its	Charter?	 182	 94.79%	 0	 0.00%	 10	 5.21%	



 9 

What Parents Like Best about GVCS 
My EF and their dedication to the students/making sure my kids are meeting their goals 
The library and the fact that I don’t have to use all of my funds for curriculum/ The library is fantastic - vast curriculum 
choices available - well stocked 
Testing 
Accountability - they keep me on track 
Friendly Staff at GVCS office and in the library 
Freedom to choose curriculum 
Flexibility in the choice of teaching methods and program but within a structured setting 
Great variety of quality vendors to provide children with a rich educational experience 
Support 
Love the new attendance logs 
Using instructional funds to pay for classes 
Park Days/Field Trips 
Spelling Bee 
Newsletters 
All of the different resources available to us 
Support is given through a wide range of vendor services and supplies 
GVCS is a great school, but it is the people that bring GVCS the wow factor 
The integrity of the school 
Library is so updated and organized 
No changes! It is the best school! 
Appreciate all of the science days at the park 
Online Subscriptions 
I love that someone answers the phone when I call and how quickly the staff answers emails and phone calls 
I appreciate the state testing practice 
Flexible Curriculum for Grades K-8 
GVCS cares about how my student is progressing 
We can work at our own pace and there is less stress on my children 
Meeting with EF every 20 days/ keep me accountable and organized 
Willingness to accommodate various educational needs of students 
Love the direction of the school 
Love the support and encouragement and resources provided /Academic Support 
Very happy with GVCS during high school 
Love our streamlined ordering process 



 10 

What Parents Want/Would Change or 
Add 

GVCS Response to Parent Concerns/Wants 

Please add Amazon as a vendor 
We have added amazon as a vendor beginning with the 
2018-19 school year. 
 

Funds should be released earlier in the year 

Instructional funds are released several weeks prior to the 
start of school. We do not pay for materials and services for 
use outside of the regular school year, per legal 
requirements. 

More social opportunities to meet peers and socialize 

For the 18-19 school year, we have over 35 school wide 
events Including Fun Days, Park Days, Field Trips, Art 
Contest, Author’s Fair, Back to School Event, and more. 
 

Funds that roll over into the next school year 
Schools operate on an annual fiscal year, which is audited 
annually. We are not able to roll funds over from one year 
to the next. 

Make the library open to families at any time for meeting 
and study sessions.   

Effective 11-1-18, we are changing two of the library days 
from needing appointments to “drop in days”.  

Vendors should be allowed to teach in the home We take pride in our policies on student safety, and require 
services to be provided in public to ensure their safety. 

More assistance in writing learning plans maybe in the 
form of a workshop 

This is an EF responsibility. The EF works with the parent 
for input. It is best done together. 

Easier process for vendors to be approved 

As long as a vendor meets our requirements for approval, 
the GVCS process is simple and fast. Delays often occur 
due to the vendor not qualifying or completing necessary 
paperwork. 

Math classes or tutor offered/study skills classes 

We have many vendors that offer math classes, tutoring, 
and study skills assistance. All parents are encouraged to 
seek out new vendors near their homes that they would like 
to have added. 

Please add Mystery Science 
In addition to Mystery Science being available to parents 
individually for free through Mystery Science, they are also 
a GVCS vendor. 

Website is hard to navigate, not user friendly or modern 
We continue to work on this concern. Our parent portal 
contains a vast amount of information, and we are trying to 
find the best way to keep it current at all times. 

Improve school pride/culture so that families feel 
connected. 

We have increased the number of school wide activities, 
have developed a strong Facebook following, and have 
created a private Facebook group for families to 
communicate and share ideas. We are looking into an on-
demand spirit wear site for families and staff. 

The ability to share funds between students 

GVCS does not allow this practice because we feel that 
ALL students should receive equitable funding based on 
grade level.  
 

More funds for classes and services. 

We increased instructional funds in 18-19. Additionally, we 
keep the library stocked with the most popular curriculum 
so families can check most or all educational materials out 
at no cost out of instructional funds, freeing the funds for 
services and more personalized curriculum.  
 

Help for students with test taking issues GVCS offers stress-free test taking practice at simulated 
testing sites, and this has been well attended. 



 11 

 
 
 
 
  

Leadership opportunities 
We have two of our five board member positions open to 
parents. 
 

Why is there a fee to check out already broken 
instruments 

We have eliminated these charges effective the 18-19 year. 
 

Ability to return items directly to the library 
The EF manages the check-out list for families. One option 
would be to arrange a meeting with your EF at the library 
for this purpose. 

More service vendors closer to my home 

We increase vendors regularly, based on parent request. 
Please find vendors that you would like to use near your 
home and submit the Vendor Approval Request Form.  
 

Better suggestions on how to use funds initially-so 
overwhelming 

Your EF is responsible for assisting you with this. It is one 
of the services that we are proud to have in place for our 
families. They are willing and ready to help you! 

Please allow occasional online meetings  GVCS does allow occasional online meetings, with 
administrative approval.   

Have a vendor fair We have a vendor fair scheduled for the 18-19 school year. 

Workshops for families We will work on adding these types of activities into future 
school years. 



 12 

 
E.  STAFF DATA 

	
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Staff Credential Information: 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Director of 
Education 

Support and Development Coordinator 

Office 
Support 

Coordinator 

Business 
Svcs 

EFs 

Clerical 

Director of 
Special Ed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Curriculum & 
Assess. Coord. 
 

Executive 
Assistant 

Service  
Provider

sss 

Admini-
strative 

Assistant 
 

GVCS, Inc. BOARD 

Executive 
Director 

Key:       Certificated Employee: Blue Square                                             Classified Employee: Yellow Square 
            Certificated Contract Svc: Blue Circle                                          Classified Contract Svc: Yellow Circle 
                                                                                                                                    



 13 

STAFF CREDENTIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Albright, Christine:  Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential, General  Subjects; Cross-
Cultural Language and Academic Development Emphasis, Expires 8-1-21; M.A. in Teaching and 
Specialization in Reading. 
 
Alday, Anne: Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential - General Subjects, Expires 5-1-19; Clear Specialist 
Instruction Credential in Special Education – Severely Handicapped, Expires 5-1-19; M.A. in Special 
Education. 

 
Barnett, Melissa: Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential K-12, Expires 5-1-23. 

 
Gomez, Elizabeth: Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential-General Subjects; Bilingual, Cross-cultural 
Language and Academic Development, Emphasis:  Spanish, Expires 5-1-19.   
 
Gomez, Tabeth: Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential-General Subjects, Expires 
9/1/20; Professional Clear Single Subject – Art, Expires 8-1-15; Professional Clear Single Subject - Home 
Economics, Expires 8-1-20; M.A. in Education. 

 
Guy, Laura:  Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential - General Subjects, Expires 4-1-20; CLAD 
certification with Math and Science supplements. 

 
Halpin, Jacqueline:  Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential – General Subjects, Expires 10-1-18; 
Clear Single Subject Teaching Credential - Social Science, Expires 10-1-18. 

 
Hamilton, Hayley: Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential K-8, Expires 9-1-19. 

 
Hammerschmitt, Staci: Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential K-8, Expires 7-1-18. 

 
Hand-Hogan, Wendy: Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential K-12, Expires 5-1-21. 
 
Klein, Sylvia: Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential – General Subjects, Expires 7-1-20 
 
Marston, Cynthia:  Professional Clear Single Subject Teaching Credential - Biological Sciences, Expires 6-
1-20.  

 
McBride, Norma: Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential K-12, Expires 2-1-20. 

 
Purcell, Tricia:  Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential – General Subjects, Expires 7-1-22; Clear Single 
Subject Teaching Credential – Mathematics, Expires 2/1/19; M.A. in Teaching and Learning. 

 
Rydman, Margaret: Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential - General Subjects, Expires 5-1-22; 
Preliminary Administrative Services Credential, Expires 8-1-22; M.A. in Education. 
 
Salsberry, Joyce Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential with CLAD emphasis,  Expires 
9-1-20 
 
Schiavone, Terri: Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential, General Subjects, Expires10-1-
21, Clear Administrative Services Credential, Expires 10-1-21. 

 
 



 14 

Sharp, Amy: Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential - General Subjects, Expires 9-1-18. 
 

Stark, Tiffany: Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential – General Subjects, math supplement, Expires 
7-1-18. 

 
Stewart, Tamie:  Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential - General Subjects; Cross-cultural 
Language and Academic Development, Emphasis, Expires 1-11-19 
 
Stirling, MaryJo:  Life Diploma, 7-12th. Grade, M.S. in Education. 

 
Theobald, Wendy:  Professional Clear Single Subject Teaching Credential – Mathematics, Expires 6-1-22; 
Clear Cross-cultural, Language and Academic Development Certificate. 
 
Veiga, Lorrie:  Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential, Expires 11-1-19. 

 
Yard, Racheal: Professional Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential – General Subjects, Expires 1-1-
20; Professional Clear Specialist Instruction Credential in Special Education, Expires 1-1-20; Clear Resource 
Specialist Certificate of Competence; Clear Cross-cultural, Language and Academic Development Certificate; 
M.A. in Special Education. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 15 

F.  HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY 
 
Golden Valley Charter School shall comply with all of the requirements of Education Code, Section 45122.1 to 
ensure the safety of employees and students.  GVCS will comply with all applicable laws, including the Family 
Education Rights and Privacy Act, concerning immunization, health and safety, child abuse reporting and 
related issues for both employees and students.  All employees of GVCS will furnish criminal record summaries 
in accordance with Education Code 45122.1.  The Health and Safety Policy below is taken from our employee 
handbook: 
 
The health and safety of employees and others on GVCS property are of critical concern to GVCS.  We strive to 
attain the highest possible level of safety in all activities and operations.  GVCS also intends to comply with all 
health and safety laws applicable to our business.  To this end, GVCS must rely upon employees to ensure that 
work areas are kept safe and free of hazardous conditions.  
 
 Employees should be conscientious about workplace safety, including proper operating methods and known 
dangerous conditions or hazards.  You should report any unsafe conditions or potential hazards to the Director 
immediately, even if you believe you have corrected the problem.  If you suspect a concealed danger is present 
on GVCS's premises, or in a product, facility, piece of equipment, process, or business practice for which 
GVCS is responsible, bring it to the attention of the Director immediately.  The Director should arrange for the 
correction of any unsafe condition or concealed danger immediately. 
 
Periodically, GVCS may issue rules and guidelines governing workplace safety and health.  All employees 
should familiarize themselves with these rules and guidelines as strict compliance will be expected.  Contact the 
Director for copies of current rules and guidelines.  Failure to comply strictly with rules and guidelines 
regarding health and safety or negligent work performance that endangers health and safety will not be 
tolerated. 
 
Additionally, GVCS has developed a written Injury and Illness Prevention Program as required by law.  If you 
have not received your copy of this Program, or if you wish an additional copy, please contact the Director.  It is 
your responsibility to read, understand, and observe the Injury and Illness Prevention Program provisions 
applicable to your job. 
 
Any workplace injury, accident, or illness must be reported to the Director as soon as possible, regardless of the 
severity of the injury or accident.  If medical attention is required immediately, the Director will assist 
employees in obtaining medical care, after which the details of the injury or accident must be reported. 
 
Health and Safety Issues with GVCS staff/facilities: 
 
None 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 16 

G.  RACIAL AND ETHNIC SURVEY COMPARISON OF 
CHARTER PUPILS AS COMPARED WITH DISTRICT PUPILS 

 
 

Selected School Level Data 
Golden Valley Charter--Mesa Union Elem--5672470-5630363 

for the year 2016-17 
 
 

School Total 
African 

American  

American 
Indian or 
Alaska 
Native Asian Filipino 

Hispanic 
or Latino 

Pacific 
Islander White  

Two or 
More 

Races 
None Reported 

(Ethnicity) 
Golden 
Valley 
Charter 

633  
2.5% 

 
 0.3% 4.1% 0.9% 30.3%)  

 0.0% 
 

 52.9%  8.1.%  
0.8 

 
Mesa 
Elementa
ry 

617   
0.6% 

 
 0.5% 

 
 2.8%  3.9%  67.7%  

 0.6% 

 
 19.8

% 
 4.1%  

 0.0% 

 
Data source: CDE DataQuest website 
 
 
 
 

H. ADMISSIONS OVERVIEW 
 
Students are considered for admission without regard to ethnicity, national origin, gender, or disability.  
Students are placed on a prospective student list once all required paperwork has been submitted, including, but 
not limited to, immunization and health report information.  Parents of special education students must either 
provide a copy of their child’s most recent IEP, or a copy of all assessment reports if a student does not have an 
IEP, but was evaluated for special education. Parents may provide the charter school with a signed form 
authorizing the current school of placement to release a copy of the IEP or assessment reports in lieu of 
providing the IEP or assessment reports. Prior to admission, all parents and students must read the GVCS 
Charter and Independent Study Policy, and sign the Master Student Agreement indicating an agreement to abide 
by the charter’s philosophy, program, and other applicable requirements and responsibilities.  Parents and 
students sign the master student agreement for each semester of enrollment, which outlines the distribution of 
educational responsibilities, student educational goals, objectives, methods of evaluation, and additional rights 
and responsibilities of the parents and students, including special education services offered by the charter 
school. All students’ continued enrollment shall be dependent upon compliance with the Master Student 
Agreement. 
 
All students in the MUSD, neighboring districts, and TK-12 students residing in counties contiguous with and 
including Ventura County are eligible to attend Golden Valley Charter School.  If more students apply than can 
be admitted, a lottery system is used to determine those selected to attend. Admission preference is given to 
siblings of current students and to those students residing within MUSD boundaries and then to students who 
live in other communities and counties. 
 
GVCS complies with all laws establishing minimum age for public school attendance. For a maximum age 
limit, the school only allows pupils over 19 years of age to attend if they have been and are continuously 
enrolled in public school and make satisfactory progress towards a high school diploma.  
 



 17 

In keeping with the mission of this school, GVCS seeks to continue to provide this alternative, personalized 
learning model of education to all those who seek it for their children. However, in order to ensure the 
survivability of this school and to provide the same level of high quality services GVCS families have had 
access to thus far, GVCS believes that steady monitored growth is desirable in that it is reflective of our ability 
to sustain a rigorous, personalized, standards-based education which is a viable, time-tested alternative to those 
seeking enrollment in this type of school. 
 
In order to achieve this mission, GVCS is committed to the following: 
 

• Continuing attention to stakeholder concerns and desires through our annual survey and open door 
policy. 

• Monitoring of enrollment on a regular basis, and attention to reasons stakeholders may have for leaving 
our school. 

• Systematic process for public awareness of our educational program.  
• Continual self-evaluation for the purpose of program improvement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attendance of 75% or less in any given assignment period (not to exceed twenty (20) school days) will 
automatically result in probationary status of the student.  A second probation in the current academic year will 
result in immediate dismissal from the charter school. 
 
Dismissal data: One student was dismissed due to academic probation.  

 
I.  INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL DISPUTE  
     MECHANISMS 

 
Our Uniform Complaint Policy, revised and approved by the board in August 2009, ensures a process by which 
complaints may be received and investigated. No complaints were received in 2017-18. 
 
 

J. OTHER INFORMATION 
 
Summary of Board Decisions 2017-2018: 
 

The following are the major decisions approved by the Golden Valley Board during the 2017-18 school year: 
 

• Approval of Suicide Prevention Policy 
• Approval of Revision to the GVCS Vision Statement 
• Approval of GVCS Title IX, Harassment, Intimidation, Discrimination, and Bullying Policy 
• Approval of GVCS Gender Equity/Title IX Policy 

Ending ADA 
2017-18 

# students not 
placed by 
enrollment 
deadline of 3-
1-18  

Voluntarily 
Dropped between 
8/22/17 and 
5/25/18 

# students placed 
on Academic 
Probation during 
2017-18 

Dismissed in 
2017-18 school 
year 

642 0 262 13 1 



 18 

• Approval of Revision to the GVCS Conflict of Interest Code-revised to change filing location from 
FPPC to Clerk of the Ventura County Board of Supervisors’ Office 

• Approval of Revision to Employee Handbook: Payroll Policy 
• GVCS was voted a Favorite Charter School in the 2017 LA Daily News Readers 

Choice…and for the 2018 award, we were voted Best Non-Traditional Charter School! 

 




















































































































































































































































































	2. Board Agenda November 15, 2018
	6. Board Minutes October 16, 2018
	9.A. Initial Proposal of MUST to Mesa Union - Copy
	11.A.1. Call for Nominations to CSBA's Delegate Assembly
	12.A. Purchase Order
	12.B. Check Register
	12.C. Statement of Revenues
	12.D. Current Enrollment
	12.E. SOM and Jr High 1st Quarter Awards
	13.A. Initial Proposal of Mesa Union to MUTA
	13.B. Initial Proposal of Mesa Union to MUST
	14.A. Initial Proposal of MUST to Mesa Union
	14.B. Resolution#18-19-07 Regarding Annual & Five Year Accounting of Development Fees
	14.C. Out of State Conference Request for Jahr and Reyes
	14.D. Out of State Conference Request for Mendoza, Villa, and Ramirez
	14.E. FSA Field Trip request to SLO
	14.F. 8th Grade Field Trip request to Museum of Tolerance
	14.G. 8th Grade Field Trip request to Magic Mountain
	14.H. GVCS Programmatic Data Report 2017-18 -FINAL
	14.I. Obsolete and Disposal of Bus#2
	14.J. CBSA Board Policies Update October 2018 First Read 
	14.K. Independant Contractor Agreement with Shallon Cert for Speech Services
	14.L. 3yr Quote for Renaissance Math Software

